
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

August 30th, 2023 2 

 3 

Members Present: Chairman Dave Blomseth, Tom Disse, Kohl Skalin, Tommy Ailie, County 4 

Commissioner Erica Jepson, Harvey Aho, Nick Bowers, Steve Lindow, Jeff Moritz, Kim 5 

Mattson, Commissioner John Okeson, Craig Hall, Mary Seaberg, and Zoning Director Kyle 6 

Vareberg. Members Absent: none 7 

  8 

Chairman Dave Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Technician Nicole Bradbury recorded the minutes. 10 

 11 

Harvey Aho made a motion to approve the minutes from the June 28th, 2023, meeting. Skalin 12 

second. All members in favor. Motion carried.  13 

 14 

Chairman Dave Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 15 

recommendations of the Planning Commission would be forwarded to the County Board of 16 

Commissioners for final action. Applicant one (1) will be forwarded to Lake Eunice Township 17 

for final action. Applicant two (2) will be forwarded to Detroit Township for final action.  18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

New Business: 22 

 23 

1. APPLICANT: AJR BCL Storage LLC 13996 Deerpoint Rd Audubon, MN 56511 24 

Project Location: 14201 Tradewinds Rd Audubon, MN 56511 LEGAL LAND 25 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 17.0079.001 Section 07 Township 138 Range 26 

042; 7-138-42 PT GOVT LOT 7: COM S QTR COR SEC 7, E 326.23' TO POB; E 27 

921.77', N 1319.04', W 858.1', S 22.6', W 33.79' TO CTR RD, S AL CTR RD 28 

473.85', W 33.06', S 788.51' TO POB. TRACT B. LESS PLAT (6.41AC) 29 

APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a first 30 

Supplemental Plat for units thirteen (13) through twenty-one (21) of TRADE WINDS 31 

NEIGHBOR’S STORAGE. 32 

 33 

 34 

As there was no one present to present the application and no one to speak for or against the 35 

application testimony was closed. 36 

 37 

Moritz stated that the Cormorant Lakes Watershed District (CLWD) had no issues with the 38 

project.  39 

 40 

 41 

MOTION: Moritz motioned to approve the application as presented; Bowers 42 

second. Roll Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 43 

 44 

 45 

 46 



 

 

2 

 

2. APPLICANT: Michael D Anderson 213 Willow St E Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 47 

Project Location: 25641 Brolin Beach Rd Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL 48 

LAND DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 08.0292.003 Section 16 Township 139 49 

Range 041; 16-139-041 PT GOVT LOTS 2 & 3: BEG SWLY COR LOT 1 50 

GRAVELLE AC TH S 456.82', E 329.79', N 419.07' TO SLY LN GRAVELLE AC, 51 

NWLY 332.58 TO POB AKA TRACT A 2015 REF : 1.96 AC MOVED TO 52 

BROLIN BCH CONDOS APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 53 

Request a first Supplemental Plat for units nine (9) through sixteen (16) of BROLIN 54 

BEACH CONDOS. 55 

 56 

 57 

There was no one present to present the application. 58 

 59 

Clayton Schott, condo owner, asked how the applicant was able to construct the building before 60 

doing the final plat. He also shared his concerns that there weren’t more notifications give in the 61 

preliminary stages of the project. 62 

 63 

Vareberg explained that they constructed the building first and then spotted the common walls 64 

for the plat. He also explained that the preliminary plat was approved by the City of Detroit 65 

Lakes in 2014, and everyone would have been notified at that time. 66 

 67 

Testimony closed. 68 

 69 

 70 

MOTION: Aho motioned to approve this application as presented. Seaberg second. 71 

Roll Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 72 

 73 

 74 

 75 

3. APPLICANT: Jill L Mohn & Kevin J Mohn 34172 Camp Cherith Rd Frazee, MN 76 

56544 Project Location: 23899 Co Rd 104 & 23938 Highview Oaks Rd Detroit 77 

Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Numbers: 24.0236.001 78 

& 24.0237.000 Section 31 Township 140 Range 041; 31-140-41 NE1/4 NE1/4 W OF 79 

TH 59, LESS S 720' W OF TH 59. LESS 2.82AC (24-236-0, TRACT B). TRACT A. 80 

&S 720' OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 W OF HWY #59 EX .21 AC FOR HWY 81 

APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Change of Zone 82 

from Agricultural to Residential. 83 

 84 

 85 

 86 

Kevin Mohn presented the application and explained his desire to develop the land for residential 87 

use. 88 

 89 

Ailie asked about the north parcel and the proposed land locked split and asked if there would be 90 

an easement. 91 

 92 



 

 

3 

 

Mohn said yes. He will work with Meadowland on driveway locations. 93 

 94 

Skalin commented on the fact that most of the county was blanket zoned Agricultural. 95 

 96 

Ailie mentioned the fact that there is a residential neighborhood in that area. 97 

 98 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application testimony was closed. 99 

 100 

 101 

 102 

MOTION: Disse motioned to approve this application as presented. Seaberg second. 103 

Roll Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 104 

 105 

 106 

 107 

5. APPLICANT: Daniel J Lake 51080 Co Hwy 40 Menahga, MN 56464 Project 108 

Location: TBD Co Hwy 40 Menahga, MN 56464 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: 109 

Tax ID Number: 37.0148.001 Section 34 Township 139 Range 037; 34-139-037 110 

SE1/4 SE1/4 & S1/2 NE1/4 SE1/4 LESS 11.60 AC. APPLICATION AND 111 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use Permit to operate a 112 

commercial building with retail sales and services. 113 

 114 

 115 

Daniel lake presented the application and explained that he would like an office space where he 116 

can meet and work with clients to plan projects. 117 

 118 

Hall asked if he was planning to use it just as an office space or to store stuff as well. 119 

 120 

Lake said he would like to keep parts on hand. He commented that irrigators typically go straight 121 

to the farm, but if it would get busier there could be the occasional truck or two there waiting to 122 

deliver to a field. 123 

 124 

Lindow asked about the swamp and marsh on the property and what precautions will be taken to 125 

protect those. 126 

 127 

Vareberg said he will need to have a silt fence in place during the excavation period. 128 

 129 

Vareberg said that Lake has worked extensively with the Becker County Soil and Water 130 

Conservation District (SWCD). 131 

 132 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application testimony was closed. 133 

 134 

 135 

MOTION: Hall motioned to approve this application as presented. Aho second. Roll 136 

Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 137 

 138 



 

 

4 

 

 139 

6. APPLICANT: Nicholas G Lewis & Betsy J Lewis 19898 330th Ave Rochert, MN 140 

56578 Project Location: 19898 330th Ave Rochert, MN 56578 LEGAL LAND 141 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 10.0279.001 Section 15 Township 139 Range 142 

040; PT GOVT LOT 1; BEG 679.92' S OF NE COR TH S 404.28', TH W 556.70', S 143 

165', W 227.69' TO LK, TH NLY TO PNT SW OF POB & NELY 978.78' TO BEG. 144 

APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use 145 

Permit for a retaining wall. 146 

 147 

 148 

This application has been tabled by the applicant. 149 

 150 

 151 

 152 

4. APPLICANT: Gehrig Properties LLC PO Box 9923 Fargo, ND 58106 Project 153 

Location: TBD 270th Ave Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND 154 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 19.0296.000 Section 15 Township 138 Range 155 

041; S1/2 OF NE1/4 LESS THE SOUTH 200' OF THE EAST 675' APPLICATION 156 

AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use Permit to operate 157 

a convenience store and gas station. 158 

 159 

 160 

Jon Lowry with Lowry Engineering presented the application. He explained the history of 161 

working with the city to determine what may be the best fit for this area. In early discussion a gas 162 

station as an amenity that would support the boat launch was discussed. He said they worked 163 

with the city on their long-term goals for this area. He said they want to build a nice facility that 164 

will fit in with housing. He also commented that they have plenty of property and don’t need to 165 

access anything across city property. 166 

 167 

Skalin stated that he talked to some of the Planning Commission members from the City of 168 

Detroit Lakes, and he wanted to clarify that when the city was voting it wasn’t specifically for a 169 

gas station, they were voting on zoning to support a gas station. 170 

 171 

Lindow said the letter from the City of Detroit Lakes mentioned access to the property crossing 172 

over city property and asked for clarification. 173 

 174 

Lowry stated that the county portion of the property borders property they own that falls with in 175 

the City of Detroit Lakes, and the intention was to have some of the parking lot on the annex 176 

line, but the building and use would be south of that. He said if the city won’t allow that, then 177 

they are willing to move it all on the property that falls within the jurisdiction of Becker County. 178 

 179 

Lindow asked how many times the city turned it down. 180 

 181 

Skalin stated that they turned down the zoning request not the gas station. 182 

 183 



 

 

5 

 

Blomseth also commented that they turned down a zoning request for businesses similar to a gas 184 

station. 185 

 186 

Skalin commented that a majority of the letters were concerned with safety and asked Lowry if 187 

he ever addressed safety with the city. 188 

 189 

Lowry said that convenience stores don’t add to existing traffic flow. He stated they are an 190 

amenity to existing traffic. 191 

 192 

Skalin asked if a turn lane would be put in. 193 

 194 

Lowry said its not out of the question. 195 

 196 

Jepson said in reading the letter from the City that is seems they are not supportive of this 197 

project. And referenced the commented about not allowing sewer and water. 198 

 199 

Skalin said there was discussion of not providing amenities before the annex. 200 

 201 

Lowry said there is no intention of annexing the remaining property at this time. He explained 202 

what they could do with wells and septics if and when homes are built. 203 

 204 

Lindow asked how it won’t increase traffic. 205 

 206 

Lowry said the people stopping at the gas station are the people using these roads already. 207 

 208 

Jepson agreed that she doesn’t think people will go out of their way to use it. 209 

 210 

Jason Gehrig spoke and said that he wants this to be a nice development. 211 

 212 

Blomseth asked for a show of hands for how many were there to speak for this application and 213 

set some rules for consideration and an allowance of three (3) minutes each. 214 

 215 

Blomseth also stated that he would be abstaining from voting due to a conflict of interest. He 216 

said he will be running the meeting but will not be voting. 217 

 218 

Nick Bowers said that he also would not be voting as he has neighboring property to the project.  219 

 220 

Mike Beehler, neighbor, spoke and said they would be able to see the gas station from their 221 

home and encouraged the board to vote against this. 222 

 223 

Gail Norland, neighbor, shared that the park is great, but a gas station does not appeal to 224 

residents. Norland presented a petition signed by eighty-two (82) residents and is entered into 225 

record below: 226 

 227 



 

 

6 

 

 228 



 

 

7 

 

 229 
 230 

 231 

 232 



 

 

8 

 

 233 



 

 

9 

 

 234 
 235 

Norland commented on the amount of traffic and pedestrians, as well as the abundance of 236 

vehicles parking on the road as well as the number of trailers along the road due to the landing 237 

being full and is concerned that this will increase traffic. She stated that insurance rates will 238 

increase for those living within a certain distance of a gas station and home values will 239 

depreciate. She commented that lights will be a burden and shared her concerns regarding gas 240 

station fires. 241 

 242 

Amanda Beehler spoke and said she’s not against development, but not in favor of a gas station. 243 

She shared concerns regarding all night pay at the pump services and wants their voices heard 244 

because they are invested in the neighborhood. 245 

 246 

Jepson asked Beehler why she is okay with other businesses and not a gas station. 247 

 248 



 

 

10 

 

Beehler said because a gas station has lights on all the time, the signage is unappealing, pay at 249 

the pump will bring all night traffic shining lights, and the risks of loitering. 250 

 251 

Lindow asked if the gas station was the concern and not the convenient store. 252 

 253 

Beehler said a convenience store has set business hours and 24-hour pay at the pump is all night 254 

long. 255 

 256 

Ron Schultz, neighbor spoke and asked if a traffic count had been done to determine if there is 257 

enough traffic to justify a gas station. He asked the investors to consider whether or not they 258 

would want to live across from a gas station. 259 

 260 

Delta Dagget, neighbor, spoke and said he likes living in a semi-rural area and that if he wanted 261 

to be close to businesses he would move into town. 262 

 263 

Ken Brill, neighbor, spoke and urged the board to reject the application. He stated there is not a 264 

big demand for gas in the area, and people don’t want it out there. Brill spoke on health 265 

considerations and the risk of pollution from gas stations.  266 

 267 

Joel Olson, neighbor, spoke and said he was present at the city meetings. He commented on the 268 

already heavy traffic on both sides of the road and asked why put up a nice park and then a gas 269 

station. 270 

 271 

All letters received regarding this application are entered into the record below: 272 

 273 

 274 
 275 



 

 

11 

 

 276 
 277 



 

 

12 

 

 278 



 

 

13 

 

 279 
*Attachments are on file with the Becker County Zoning office and are available to view upon 280 

request.* 281 

 282 



 

 

14 

 

 283 



 

 

15 

 

 284 



 

 

16 

 

 285 

 286 
 287 

 288 
 289 



 

 

17 

 

 290 
 291 



 

 

18 

 

 292 
 293 



 

 

19 

 

 294 
 295 

 296 



 

 

20 

 

 297 
 298 

 299 
 300 



 

 

21 

 

 301 
 302 



 

 

22 

 

 303 
 304 



 

 

23 

 

 305 
 306 

 307 
 308 



 

 

24 

 

 309 
 310 



 

 

25 

 

 311 



 

 

26 

 

 312 

 313 



 

 

27 

 

 314 



 

 

28 

 

 315 



 

 

29 

 

 316 
 317 



 

 

30 

 

 318 



 

 

31 

 

 319 

 320 
 321 

 322 

Testimony closed. 323 

 324 

The board asked for Lake View Township’s opinion on the project. 325 

 326 

Phil Hansen spoke and said the township does not have any objections to the project. 327 

 328 

Mattson said his main concern is safety with the number of boats and existing traffic. 329 



 

 

32 

 

 330 

Skalin commented that if there was a turn lane, traffic couldn’t park in it. 331 

 332 

Jepson asked who would be responsible for putting in the turn lane. 333 

 334 

Skalin said he’s not sure how the city works, but it can fall on the developer. 335 

 336 

Aillie stated that it would cut down the amount of time everyone would have to drive to a gas 337 

station. He thinks traffic will either be the same or cut down. He said it would be an amenity for 338 

the surrounding community and other people wouldn’t likely drive out of their way to use it. 339 

 340 

Hall said he does not live there but he knows people who do. He feels this is the direction the 341 

city will be growing. He commented on the growth of Fargo to the South and west. He said they 342 

put in parks and eventually expanded to convenience stores and gas stations. Hall stated there 343 

used to be a gas station where he lives and when it closed it was missed. Now he has to drive ten 344 

(10) miles and it’s inconvenient. He thinks it will be needed and will happen eventually 345 

anyways. 346 

 347 

Lindow thinks a gas station would only be a minor convenience and not worth upsetting the 348 

neighbors in the area. He said if it is needed than move it to another part of the property away 349 

from neighbors. 350 

 351 

Ailie commented that if you move the gas station it will still be in someone else’s back yard. 352 

 353 

Skalin said he understands the light pollution and wonders if there is a way to figure that out. 354 

 355 

Ailie thought if you moved the building south there would be more room to put in a buffer. He 356 

also commented that in the present time a gas station is just a want, but once everything is 357 

developed it will be a need. He agrees that light pollution is an issue. 358 

 359 

Lindow said he would like to see it tabled and have them come back with a different proposal. 360 

 361 

Skalin said they could rotate the building ninety (90) degrees so the pumps would be on the 362 

South.  363 

 364 

Ailie thought then it would make sense to keep the building close to the North and let the lights 365 

shine towards the south.  366 

 367 

Blomseth asked the applicant if he would be opposed to turning it. 368 

 369 

Gehrig said he’s open to things and that he’s just looking for approval at this point. 370 

 371 

Blomseth said they can always add stipulations. 372 

 373 

Lowry said they agree light pollution is a concern. 374 

 375 



 

 

33 

 

Seaberg said in reference to Chapter 8 of the Becker County ordinance, there is an effect on 376 

surrounding properties, there is an effect on development, and it is a nuisance. 377 

 378 

 379 

MOTION: Lindow motioned to table the application until the next meeting to get 380 

more information and to allow time for the applicant to rethink and present a 381 

revised plan. Motin died for a lack of second. 382 

 383 

 384 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve this application with the stipulation that the 385 

building be turned ninety (90) degrees, that they remove all facilities out of the city 386 

limits of Detroit Lakes, and that they schedule a special meeting on September 18th, 387 

2023, to consider findings of fact consistent with the motion. Aho second.  388 

 389 

Vareberg asked that it be allowed to not only consider findings at the September 18th meeting, 390 

but to also allow anyone on the Board to consider and bring any other conditions they may feel 391 

necessary. 392 

 393 

Skalin and Aho accepted the changes to the motion. Roll Call; Disse, Skalin, Moritz, 394 

Ailie, Hall, and Aho in favor. Lindow, Seaberg, and Mattson opposed. Motion 395 

carried. 396 

 397 

 398 

 399 

Other Business: 400 

 401 

I) Tentative Date for Next Informational Meeting: September 20th, 2023; 8:00 am; 3rd Floor 402 

Meeting Room in the Becker County Courthouse, Detroit Lakes, MN. 403 

 404 

 405 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Ailie made a motion to 406 

adjourn. Aho second. All in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 7:43 pm.  407 

 408 

 409 

________________________________                ________________________________ 410 

David Blomseth, Chairman    Jeff Moritz, Secretary 411 

 412 

ATTEST 413 

      _______________________________________ 414 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  415 


